Overview & Scrutiny

Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission

All Members of the Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission are requested to attend the meeting of the Commission to be held as follows:

Monday, 6th January, 2020

7.00 pm

Room 102, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA

Tim Shields
Chief Executive, London Borough of Hackney

Contact:

Tracey Anderson

2 020 8356 3312

Members: Cllr Mete Coban (Chair), Cllr Polly Billington (Vice-Chair),

Cllr Richard Lufkin, Cllr Sam Pallis, Cllr Steve Race and

Cllr Gilbert Smyth

Agenda

ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 2 Urgent Items / Order of Business
- 3 Declarations of Interest

4	Minutes of Previous Meeting	(Pages 1 - 24)
---	-----------------------------	----------------

- 5 Cabinet Member Question Time Employment Skills (Pages 25 26) and Human Resources
- 6 Cabinet Member Question Time Planning, Culture (Pages 27 38) and Inclusive Economy
- 7 Making the Local Economy Work for Hackney Recommendation Discussion
- 8 Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission (Pages 39 44) 2019/20 Work Programme



9

Access and Information

Getting to the Town Hall

For a map of how to find the Town Hall, please visit the council's website http://www.hackney.gov.uk/contact-us.htm or contact the Overview and Scrutiny Officer using the details provided on the front cover of this agenda.

Accessibility

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the Town Hall.

Induction loop facilities are available in the Assembly Halls and the Council Chamber. Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to the main Town Hall entrance.

Further Information about the Commission

If you would like any more information about the Scrutiny Commission, including the membership details, meeting dates and previous reviews, please visit the website or use this QR Code (accessible via phone or tablet 'app')





Public Involvement and Recording

Scrutiny meetings are held in public, rather than being public meetings. This means that whilst residents and press are welcome to attend, they can only ask questions at the discretion of the Chair. For further information relating to public access to information, please see Part 4 of the council's constitution, available at http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-gm-constitution.htm or by contacting Governance Services (020 8356 3503)

Rights of Press and Public to Report on Meetings

Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees, through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the person reporting or providing the commentary is present at the meeting.

Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the Council's Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting.

The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from which all recording must take place at a meeting.

The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear and record the meeting. If those intending to record a meeting require any other reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do so.

The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting. Anyone acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from any designated recording area; causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting; interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the public who have asked not to be filmed.

All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the meeting. The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they have objections to being visually recorded. Those visually recording a meeting are asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed. Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease recording or in their exclusion from the meeting.

If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and public are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or hear the proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential or exempt information is under consideration.

Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted.





Skills Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission	Item No
6 th January 2020	4
Minutes of the previous meeting and Matters Arising	4

OUTLINE

Attached are the draft minutes for the meeting on 8th September 2019.

Action 1 & 3- SEG Commission to request for the Council to discuss and explore setting up its own definition for a key worker. The Chair to submit a letter of reference to the Executive making reference to the discussion under item 5.

Response – Letter of reference to Cabinet Member has been sent.

Action 2 - HLT to confirm the number of teaching staff who have worked in Hackney schools for 15 years or more.

Response – Update to be provided at the meeting.

ACTION

The Commission is requested to agree the minutes and note any matters arising.





London Borough of Hackney Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission Municipal Year 2019/20 Date of Meeting Monday, 16th September, 2019 Minutes of the proceedings of the Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission held at Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA

Chair Councillor Mete Coban

Councillors in Attendance Cllr Polly Billington (Vice-Chair), Cllr Richard Lufkin, Cllr Sam Pallis, Cllr Steve Race and Cllr Gilbert Smyth

Apologies:

Officers In Attendance Annie Gammon (Director of Education), Dan Paul (Head

of HR & OD & Elections) and Olga Vandenbergh (Business Communications & Engagement Manager,

Regeneration Delivery Team)

Other People in Attendance

Sian Davies (Primary Advantage Federation), Councillor Carole Williams (Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills

and Human Resources) and Hamida Rogers (FRCE

Recruitment Group)

Members of the Public 1 member of the public

Officer Contact: Tracey Anderson

2 020 8356 3312

Councillor Mete Coban in the Chair

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 1.1 No apologies for absence.
- 2 Urgent Items / Order of Business
- 2.1 The order of business was as per the agenda.
- 3 Declarations of Interest
- 3.1 Cllr Lufkin declared he was employed by IPSOS Mori. There was reference to this organisation under item 5.
- 4 Minutes of Previous Meeting

4.1 The minutes were agreed.

RESOLVED	Minutes were approved.

5 Cost of Living and Public Sector Recruitment

- 5.1 The Chair welcomed to the meeting Cllr Carole Williams Cabinet Member Employment, Skills and HR; Dan Paul Head of HR and Organisational Development; Annie Gammon Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust from London Borough of Hackney. Hamida Rogers Associate Director from FRCE and Sian Davies Executive Principal from the Primary Advantage Federation.
- 5.2 The Chair advised the discussions would cover 3 key areas:
 - 1. Recruitment and retention
 - 2. Cost of living and economic drivers impacting on recruitment and retention
 - 3. Resolution and strategies.
- 5.3 The session commenced with the Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR outlining the council's response to the questions sent in advance of the meeting. The main points were:
- 5.3.1 The report highlighted the challenges and barriers the council faced in relation to recruitment. Particularly in relation to the changes in the labour market, cost of living in Central London and the public sector pay freeze local government has been experiencing since 2010.
- 5.3.2 The economic drivers and disparity were outlined in the report on pages 1 2.
- 5.3.3 Hackney is similar to many other London boroughs and there are challenges across the whole labour market. Related to the hollowing out of the labour market, lack of increases in pay and how this is impacting on an individual's physical affordability to live in inner London.
- 5.3.4 In response to the question about housing the Cabinet Member advised this was not her portfolio and asked the Commission to contact Cllr Moema if they required more detail than the information provided in the report or had further questions.
- 5.3.5 In relation to ages and seniority within the council. Hackney's workforce is a little older in comparison to the general population in the borough. The council does not have a young workforce but equally the council has not experienced any trouble recruiting young workers.
- 5.3.6 There are a number of mechanisms used by the council to increase recruit, one of these mechanisms is the Council's corporate Apprenticeship Programme. Whilst the Council has not placed any age limit on the council's apprenticeship scheme they do attract a large number of younger applicants.
- 5.3.7 There is the Hackney 100 programme work experienced programme. This aims to equip young people with employment work experience whilst at school

- and college. This is part of developing a pathway into employment. The Council is also using some of the apprenticeship levy to up skills the employees of the council.
- 5.3.8 The Council has analysed its gender pay gap as well as the ethnicity pay gap. There were pleased to report that Hackney has a positive result for the gender pay gap. The Cabinet Member pointed out women are not paid more than men. They have found the council has a high number of women in high paid positions within the organisation, therefore the overall gender pay gap for the organisation is positive.
- 5.3.9 This year they have analysed their ethnicity pay gap. The council has identified that the ethnicity pay gap is the reverse of the gender pay gap trend. This shows that ethnic minority staff are paid less than the workforce overall. Black and ethnic minority staff are in the bottom 2 quartiles of the organisation. The Commission was informed that by doing this analysis earlier than required the council is able to understand the challenges and barriers. This was reported to Full Council.
- 5.3.10 In response to the council's experience of challenges in relation to recruitment. The jobs and income bands most affected are as outlined in the report. It was pointed out that the jobs within the council that encountered specific issues or barriers were mainly senior level roles.
- 5.4 Presentation by Hamida Rogers, Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment Group. The main points from the presentation were:
- 5.4.1 FRCE Recruitment specialise in public sector recruitment. They work in partnership with Matrix who manage the temporary workforce solutions for Hackney Council.
- 5.4.2 Matrix act as a master vendor for the Hackney Learning Trust (HLT) and exclusively fulfil all the recruitment needs within HLT children centres in the borough.
- 5.4.3 In public sector recruitment the 3 distinct areas they operate in are:
 - Education
 - Social Care & Social Work
 - Nursing.
- 5.4.4 FRCE Recruitment have been working within these sectors for over 10 years.
- 5.4.5 There is a higher than typical (when compared to the private sector) percentage of substantive posts covered long term by temporary agency staff across the UK and particularly within London. Local authorities in London appear to reply for too long on temporary workers. This not only increases recruitment costs but affects continuity and makes it harder to drive forward strategies with a more transient workforce.
- 5.4.6 FRCE Recruitment noted that there are locum social worker that have been within an organisation for 5 years. The agency queried why in cases like this, local authorities did not consider these positions to be substantive posts.

- 5.4.7 Currently there are more leavers than entrants to skilled professions such as teaching, nursing and social work. The agency pointed out if long term agency placement are not tackled at the grass roots level the plans and strategies for the workforce to be engage with the community will not come to fruition.
- 5.4.8 FRCE Recruitment advised London has a unique model in the sense that every borough operates through a vendor managed service. This means FRCE does not hold the contract directly with the local authority, there is an intermediary organisation. One vendor controls almost 50% of London's labour market. In their view this has a big impact on recruitment and retention within the London labour market.
- 5.4.9 With this model margins have been driven down for the agency and pay rates driven down for the candidate. This has had an impact on the model developed to win contracts. The agency pointed out having an economically advantageous model did not guarantee quality staff.
- 5.4.10 A public sector career is not championed to graduates or clear career path shown to them. Therefore a public sector career is not a career of choice. The public sector is viewed as providing less career development, training opportunities and lower salaries. In particular for professions like a qualified social work (QSW). There are some perceptions within the market like social work having high volume and complex caseloads. In relation to the increasing caseload the demand on workers are high and the salaries are not measureable to the day to day operations.
- 5.4.11 There is a disparity with how agency workers feel compared to permanent workers. Within QSW agency staff have reported there is little support around reflective practice or CPD training for locum staff in comparison to their permanent counter parts. It is difficult to sustain the motivation and morale if there is not equal access for all staff members.
- 5.4.12 Among agency staff there is a perception of a blame culture for agency workers. The Director pointed out if an accusation is made against an agency worker that workers is suspended without pay until there is an outcome; whereas for a permanent worker they are suspended on full pay pending an investigation. This has led to some workers leaving the profession. This highlights the lack of support available for temporary workers. Notwithstanding this experience, agency worker are still reluctant to go permanent.
 - 5.4.13 Some professions feel they cannot do a competent job with the budget cuts and lack of funding. This is affecting front line service delivery. In many professions people are trained to make a difference and do not want to tick boxes. The agency has found that a number of people are either going to neighbouring boroughs, the private sector or leaving the profession completely.
 - 5.4.14 There are also financial factors that make it difficult for local authorities to drive through any programme of change. For children in schools, residents in care homes or nursing homes they are not achieving continuity and/or consistency in their care delivery service. There is a variation of skills and no consistency in support for the end user.

- 5.4.15 Pay rates are not always in line with the cost of living. This has created a unique situation whereby you have people in full time work but on poverty thresholds. Agency worker pay is reducing year on year and the cost of living is increasing. People cannot save and do not have disposable income. This erodes motivation and the morale to work. People can feel exasperated and think they are not in a position to start a family or embed themselves within the local community.
- 5.4.16 The pay scales are not comparable to what people study or can bring to the community. This does not attract the best talent. This can lead to workers viewing public sector roles as transitional. In their view this is not a rewarding career and you will not attract the best talent. This impacts on the end user.
- 5.4.17 What the agency has noticed is that the private sector and some neighbouring boroughs are paying more for the same roles. As it is easy for individuals to commute around London, they can get the same job for more money, less stress or a lower caseload.
- 5.4.18 It was pointed out the big impact on retention of nursing staff is the pay cap, pay rise freeze and scattered pay scales. The agency highlighted today's graduates want to be recognised for what they achieved and do not want to work to a spinal point for 3-5 years.
- 5.4.19 Business rates and rents are significantly high in London. Businesses are opening and closing down quite quickly. As a result they are finding that businesses are using more shared working spaces. This does not encourage engagement with the community.
 - 5.4.20 The welfare and benefit changes have affected workers too. The agency has found that some workers do feel its financial beneficial for them to work full time anymore. This is a concern because benefits should be viewed as a support until a person acquires a sustainable income and lifestyle. This view is eroding the skills of the workforce because workers with very good key skills are leaving the profession.
 - 5.4.21 Conversely there are individuals who feel forced to sign up to find a job or lose their benefits. The agency informed the Commission working with this cohort is costly and for this reason they do not work closely with Job Centre Plus. The agency has found this cohort is reluctant to enter the job market.
 - 5.4.22 They have found that people are starting a family later in life and moving out of the inner London boroughs to buy a property or start a family. This makes the community more transient which makes it difficult for councils to build that community spirit. This means there is no invest in the local community and they are losing future talent.
 - 5.4.23 There is less affordable housing being built. There are care workers and teaching assistants who do not earn a high salary and are not classified as key workers but equally carry out key roles. For the agency a key worker should be anyone who perform a key public sector role. They consider key workers to be anyone who provides a vital public service (both qualified and unqualified). This does not match the current definition used nationally of a key worker.

- 5.4.24 The IR35 legislation, implemented last year, has had a significant impact on agency workers particularly the qualified social work profession. The agency envisaged this would encourage uptake of permanent posts. However this was not the case. Some agency workers have moved back to PAYE working and some have chosen to leave the profession. This legislations is being rolled out to the private sector in April 2020. The impact of this will be reviewed.
- 5.4.25 The officer explained as a result of this legislation the individual can no longer work for their own limited company and all their income is treated as employee income. Both the agency, individual and employer are potentially liable to HMRC if the income of the individual is not treated correctly. This had a significant impact on the professional industries.
- 5.4.26 In regards to recruitment last year, the agency has found that the IR35 one of the biggest factors that affected London.
- 5.4.27 It was also highlighted that there are barriers for returners to work. For example Social Work England's new registration criteria almost precludes returners to work. However currently there is alternative funding available to support returners to QSW in the last 2 years. This highlights no synergies between Government and governing bodies.
- 5.4.28 In relation to Hackney the agency pointed out the council pays agency workers the same rate of pay as a permanent employee (for doing the same role) from day 1 as opposed to after 12 weeks. This is good for the agency workers however the agency questioned if this added to the cost of recruitment for the council. Despite the good pay conditions in their view this was not enough to address some of the wider social issues in Hackney such as in poverty and social inequalities.
- 5.4.29 The agency pointed out they challenges they have encountered is in recruiting quality and skilled educators in Hackney. Schools have class room behaviour management issues. Many children have high complex needs as well as a number of children in the borough have care plans.
- 5.4.30 It was pointed out newly qualified teachers will come to Hackney to get the inner London salary scale, get experience and start their career but will move on to other boroughs or the private sector. Feedback received is that the role involves social work skills and they do not feel trained or equipped to deal with some of the issues being presented in the classroom. Many do not live locally but travel into the borough so there is no long term commitment to contributing to the local community.
- 5.4.31 The agency does not find it hard to recruit younger staff but they are finding it difficult to retain them. This may be due to Hackney being viewed as a stepping stone and not a long term career.
- 5.4.32 The agency pointed out that Matrix, the intermediary company, do work around social responsibility and the council could do more with Matrix in this area.
- 5.4.33 The skills gaps are primarily noticeable in teaching, nursing and QSW. In reference to Hackney's report and the job roles they have listed as challenging to recruit to. These are prevalent across all London boroughs and have been

- for a long period of time. There is no easy solution to resolve these recruitment challenges.
- 5.4.34 Another factor challenging recruitment for the public sector is Brexit. Brexit will have a negative impact on front line care delivery services. This is because a high percentage of care workers and nursery workers across London and within Hackney are non UK citizens. They are putting strategies in place to encourage people to enter these professions to ensure there is a sustainable workforce for the future.
- 5.4.35 The officer explained they are not in the position to effect change in regards to the disparity in pay for the public sector but where they can provide support or effect change they do. As agency QSWs do not have access to CPD support. FRCE has set up a programme and recruited an experienced social worker (who has recently chosen to leave the profession) to run their development programme.
- 5.4.36 In regards to the social care and education staff they supply to Hackney Council. In 2018/19 the number of hours billed increased by 10,000 hours. The agency pointed out this is increasing year on year. To date in 2019 they are expecting to bill for more hours than the previous 2 years. In the agency's view this trend should be the reverse. Analysis shows these workers are long term agency workers, this indicates there are challenges in relation to employing permanent staff.
- 5.5 Presentation by Sian Davies, Executive Principal of the Primary Advantage Federation. The main points from the Head teacher's presentation about school recruitment were:
- 5.5.1 The head teacher informed the Commission she had 20 years' experience as a head teacher and is the Executive Head Teacher over 8 primary schools in Hackney.
- 5.5.2 Alongside the external factors impacting on teachers recruitment and retention for the education profession. For Hackney's workforce in schools another key role with challenges for recruitment is teaching assistants. The welfare reform and benefit cap is impacting on their working hours. In addition to an increasing number of families being rehoused outside the borough in the education sector they are seeing a large number of teaching assistants being rehoused outside the borough too. Although TAs may want to continue in the role and commute, the costs and pay do not allow them to sustain this.
- 5.5.3 There are a number of teaching assistants coming into the profession with a desire to progress into teaching roles; but the routes into teaching are varied and confusing. Streaming this would help but schools have no ability to implement this change.
- 5.5.4 In addition to the challenges with enticing young teachers to work in London once qualified; they have found encouraging young teachers to come into the profession is challenging too.
- 5.5.5 The head teacher agreed with the agency that young teachers use Hackney as a stepping stone in their career. But in her opinion Hackney has a good

- reputation as an education community and professional development is highly regarded, the environment in which people are working is highly regarded too.
- 5.5.6 In regards to the recruitment of teachers, another noticeable trend is that newly qualified teachers are opting to stay and teach in the same location they went to university because the salary they earn is not much different to London and the housing costs are less. London is no longer an attraction for qualified teachers due to the high rent to live in London (often this is one room in a shared house like they did for 3 years as a student).
- 5.5.7 There are challenges with attracting young teachers into Hackney which has been compounded by the external factors related to working in London.
- 5.5.8 The incentive to travel into Hackney is no longer attractive. The localised nature of primary schools in boroughs means there is a primary school in close proximity to where people live. If a worker chooses to move to another borough and wants to work in a primary school near home, this is an option. They can live more cheaply out of London and do not have to suffer the travel inconveniences because they can get a job locally.
- 5.5.9 Retaining teachers is also an issue when they wish to develop professionally, find security and to settle down to start a family. As teachers start families they want their children to go to school near where they live and do not want to suffer the inconvenience of childcare or travelling with the child into Hackney.
- 5.5.10 The de regulation of pay in the education sector has added a level of complication. This means academies and free schools are able to pay at different rates to maintained schools. Although all schools have budget concerns they still face issues with competing in the market where other institutions are paying more. In Hackney they can offer pay incentives but this does not always compete with the pay being offered elsewhere.
- 5.5.11 For the Executive Principal's grouping of schools they have found 2 things work well. Flexibility, especially for staff returning to work following maternity leave. Where they can offer flexibility this has worked well. Childcare, for her federation of schools they offer childcare on site. This has helped to bring staff back to work. This works well particularly for 1 child but if they have 2 children childcare tends to become more of a challenge. This when they find people can leave the profession for a period of time.
- 5.5.12 The other area of challenge relates to the uncertainty and future of school funding. This has impacted on the permanency of staff in schools.
- 5.5.13 The review of the national funding formula is threating to take away huge amounts of money from Hackney schools. This has made head teachers and school governors more cautious about the permanency of staff.
- 5.6 Presentation by Annie Gammon Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust from London Borough of Hackney. The main points from the presentation were:
- 5.6.1 Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust agreed with the previous points made by the speakers. In relation to recruitment of teachers HLT has

- found that generally schools can recruit but there may not be many applicants for the roles. Therefore the choice is limited particularly for supply teachers and covering absences.
- 5.6.2 One of the key impacts for schools and children centres is the set ratios. For children centres this means they cannot just manage if a staff member is off sick and this is the biggest part of the agency fees.
- 5.6.3 In addition to the points made about the recruitment of new teachers. The officer advised the Commission Parliament had published a report on recruitment and teaching. This report lists a number of initiatives the Government has put in place about recruitment.
- 5.6.4 The officer referred to HLT's report in the agenda and pointed out the subjects they had challenges recruiting teachers to e.g. maths and science. The officer pointed out for these subjects a bursary is offered to encourage people into teaching those subjects.
- 5.6.5 In reference to the complexity of routes into teaching a possible solution suggested by HLT was to advertise more widely the routes into teaching and the initiatives available. It was thought this might encourage more local people into teaching.
- 5.6.6 HLT agreed newly qualified teachers are attracted to Hackney schools and see Hackney as an exciting place to work. As mentioned by the head teacher Hackney does have a good reputation in the education profession.
- 5.6.7 HLT has found that teachers who have been teaching for 3-5 years want to have their own property rather than share. At this stage it is too expensive to remain in Hackney. Although teachers may get promotions while working in Hackney they cannot afford to live in Hackney. Therefore any housing subsidy initiative for teachers in the borough would be welcomed.
- 5.6.8 HLT has found that teachers have a strong sense of loyalty to their school / institution and are a close knit community. HLT advised it has been recognised nationally, if teachers are valued and there are good routes for progression this encourages them to stay. Where there are professional development opportunities, good routes through or masters courses are subsidised it retains staff.
- 5.6.9 HLT highlighted 98% of the schools in the borough are rated outstanding or good and this helps with the recruitment and retention for schools in the borough.
- 5.6.10 HLT informed the Commission from their experience teachers in the UK do not leave schools to work in the private sector but are likely to go abroad. It is easy to get a job abroad in an English speaking institution in many part of the international education community.
- 5.6.11 Another factor recognised nationally as impacting on recruitment and retention is workload. HLT advised it was important to share good practice on workload management and highlighted there is a national initiative to do more sharing of good practice.

- 5.6.12 In reference to part time work and flexibility. The Director explained it was not always possible to have flexibility in teaching. This is because the timetabling may result in children being taught by 2 or 3 different staff members in the week. Although it is an important to retain staff parents and pupils like continuity and want to see the same staff. It encourages commitment to the community.
- 5.6.13 There are government initiatives for returners to the teaching profession. This may be something they could advertise more widely.
- 5.6.14 HLT pointed out there is flexibility with pay scales. It was noted previously teachers entered at a salary point and progress steadily year on year. This has changed and teachers who are working well can be accelerate quicker through the spinal pay points. This can help to retain staff and enhance their career development. But this is also impacted by the budget constraints schools are facing.
- 5.6.15 Apprenticeships have been piloted and used in 2 federations in Hackney in the last 18 months. There has been some success.
- 5.6.16 HLT advised it was key to point out there are definitely issues related to the cost of housing. There is more that could be done to make all the routes into the teaching professions, staying or returning more widely known and less confusing. Made
- 5.7 Question, Answers and Discussions
- (i) Members made the following comments and queries:
 - a) Members noted the areas highlighted in the report as challenging, the council's work in terms of bespoke recruitment and high rental and house prices. In relation to this Members asked if the council had an understanding of the economic drivers causing people to leave or not apply for the job roles.
 - b) Members queried if issues such as house process came out in the council's workforce survey and has the council identified a link between high cost of living and the ability to retain staff?
 - c) Members asked if workers in Hackney were paid more than Hackney residents.

The Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR confirmed workers in Hackney are paid more than residents in Hackney but both cohorts earn less than the London average.

In response the Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR advised London is experiencing challenges when it comes to cost of property and where people can live. In regards to whether the council has evidence that shows how this is affecting the council's workforce they do not. Although they do have discussions about these points. There may be a question in the staff survey but this would need to be clarified. The council is aware it is important for residents to get good paid jobs close to home and this is one of the reasons they have a local recruitment campaign.

(ii) Members suggested the questions to gather this information could be in exit interviews. Members referred to the report highlighting the challenges with recruitment for higher value / higher paid jobs in specific sectors. Members discussed if the issue of recruitment and retention was a combination of factors such as public sector pay cap, high rents and high property prices? Members also queried if his was a challenge for other sectors in the workforce too.

In response the Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR advised the jobs referenced in the report also faced challenges due to the technical nature of the job and a competitive London labour market. Therefore there may not be a specific correlation between the economic drivers and the jobs set out in the report on page 7. The reason for this view is due to the level of pay some of the roles stated can demand in London.

The Head of HR and Organisation Development pointed out may of the jobs are IT, accountancy and strategic property jobs. The correlation may be how much the private sector pays for these roles. These roles are the same but pay less in the public sector. The reason they have challenges is because of the competition with the private sector.

(iii) Members enquired if the council has an understanding as to why there is the churn and if it is related to the cost of living or if staying employed in the public sector was related to the pay cap. Also specifically for Hackney was it a combination of these issues?

The Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR advised currently there has no evidence to support this assumption.

The Head of HR and Organisation Development advised informed the commission the trend is that the local workforce (as a percentage of residents living and working in the borough) is on a gradual decline. A factor for this decline could be people retiring and new employees being less likely to live in the borough. However this trend has been reversed recently the Council's corporate apprenticeship scheme. The apprentices are all local residents. This has resulted in an increase in the number of residents as employees of the council. It was noted being a local resident was a pre-requisite for an application to the scheme.

(iv) Members commented the impression they get is Hackney is a good employer to work for. Are there mechanisms in place that enable staff to give honest feedback about hackney as an employer and how is this measured?

In response the Cabinet Member Employment, Skills and HR informed Members the council conducts a staff survey and the results of the most recent survey was distributed to Members. The council compiles its own staff survey to identify how staff feel about working in the borough. This included questions about how people feel about working in Hackney.

The Cabinet Member pointed out there are a number of staff benefits in addition to good pay. The council acts upon the feedback received in the staff survey. It helps to build trust when you acknowledge the concerns raised by

your workforce and the concerns raised by the unions. The Cabinet Member pointed out the Council has been responding to the concerns raised.

The Head of HR and Organisation Development added the staff survey is carried out every 2 years. The officer pointed out there is a similar question to the one asked by Members but phrased slightly differently e.g. 'your pride in working for the council, what you think of the council as an employer, what do you think about the council delivering services and would you speak highly of the council without being asked'. This survey includes measures against local authority norms. To date the council has been proud of its rating in the survey. Comparisons with other boroughs indicate Hackney is a good council to work for.

The survey is carried out by IPSOS Mori and the council does not hold or receive any of the data collated. The. Council works with IPSOS Mori to set the questions to be able to make comparisons with other local authorities. All responses go to IPSOS Mori. The council only receives the analysed results. The council has agreed with IPSOS Mori they would not have access to the data, this ensures the response is anonymous. This is to assure that the survey is completely anonymous. If the sample is small for any particular area the responses are added to a bigger sample.

- (v) Members made the following enquires: about
 - a) Asked about BMAE representation in senior leadership roles.
 - b) Referred to staff currently in lower bands and enquired about the council's plans in terms of training and the other forms of support for progression into senior roles?
 - c) Asked if this will this be included in the inclusive leadership strategy?
 - d) Members referenced a statement in the report "We will set targets for the proportion of applications that we get from Hackney residents for our jobs, as well as aim to increase the proportion of our workforce that lives in the Borough" and enquired how the council will achieve the set projections and the action that will be taken to achieve future target figures/projections.
 - e) Although it's a strategy what strategies will you undertake to further that proportion.
- (vi) In addition to the above question Members referred to the section BAME staff representation "We are committed to take practical action to address these disparities" and enquired what that journey would look like for staff particularly existing staff members? What is the ideal workforce for the council?
- (vii) Members enquired about the council's reporting on ethnicity pay gap since 2017.

In response the Cabinet Member Employment, Skills and HR clarified that the council is only currently required to monitor the gender pay gap. There is no current legal requirement to monitor the ethnicity pay gap. The Government has consulted on the ethnicity pay gap monitoring. The council has proactively carried out this work and published information. This early work has given the council an indication of the challenge areas. However there is no formal methodology to calculate the ethnicity pay gap. The council has used the

gender pay gap methodology. The Cabinet Member pointed out there are anomalies the council will have to take into consideration, like not all staff declare ethnicity. Therefore the current calculation may not give an accurate picture.

(viii) Members enquired about the pathways into senior leadership for BAME staff.

The Cabinet Member Employment, Skills and Human Resources advised the council's inclusive leadership programme has different strands. The council has have consulted the workforce on the programme and recruited a number of champions. They will be trained on the roll out of the programme. They have held a number of focus groups too. The council is still gathering data to feed into the programme. The Cabinet Member advised she is happy to give SEG an update in the future.

(ix) Members enquired what the council was using as a key indicators for success. Is it a set number that has completed training or a number of people going into leadership?

In response the Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR explained she would like to see staff on the lowest bands in the council have access to the levy funding to give them the skills they require to step up in their career. There is also the aspect of what they do about recruitment to fill posts in the upper 2 quartiles of the organisations.

(x) Members enquired how often the council reviews its recruitment processes to assess if they are fit for purpose in light of the data collected from the staff survey.

In response the Cabinet Member Employment, Skills and Human Resources advised their recruitment is fit for purpose. There is a rolling period for which it is reviewed and changes made. The council is in the process of developing a workforce strategy. The strategy will address some of the questions asked at the meeting.

The Head of HR and Organisation Development explained they have held workshops with BAME workers specifically to understand the barriers to progression. This is the council's work to understand how their current workers would like the council to address the issue. Directors in the organisation held the workshops personally to hear the feedback directly. The feedback from the workshops is being pulled together and there will be an action plan to support the strategy.

In response to recruitment practice they are working with employee groups currently to ensure their recruitment policy and the way they collect information does not result in any unconscious bias or disadvantage any particular groups. The council is working towards anonymous recruiting and anonymising application forms. This was one of the requests workers have asked the council to do. The council is not only developing the strategy and action plan but taking action to create inclusivity in their recruitment process.

(xi) Members made comments about identifying key worker occupations and asked the Cabinet Member to explain the council's caution with identifying key worker occupations? In discussion Members pointed out previously key workers occupations and accommodation was implemented to tackle some of the challenges being experienced around recruitment and retention (shortage of workers) for certain occupational groups.

In response the Cabinet Member Employment, Skills and HR referred the commission to the Cabinet Advisor for Housing Cllr Moema response detailed in the report. However from conversations with Cllr Moema the Cabinet Member advised she was informed it is not a measure the council uses because there are more people crucial to the London labour market. It was pointed out that the definition of a key worker, as previously understood, is not applicable to the current labour market conditions.

(xii) Members queried if the council was able to identify if there were particular jobs and roles whereby the housing issue was a causation rather than a correlation for Hackney's workforce? Members asked if the council did identify this was a causation would the council implement a working definition for key workers? Members also asked if Hackney has identified particular occupations within the council's workforce where this might be a potential solution.

In response the Cabinet Member Employment, Skills and HR agreed with the points made by Members. But she pointed out without occupations like cleaners, bus drivers, refuse staff and grounds maintenance it would be difficult to continue to run a council in a London borough. This is one of the reason why she would dispute the applicability and definition of a key worker. However, if Members were suggesting the council created its own definition of a key worker, this would contain a large number of jobs and professions needed in the borough and council.

The Cabinet Member advised she would take this query back and discuss it with the Mayor and Cabinet.

ACTION	The Council to discuss and	
	explore setting up its own	
	definition for a key worker.	

- (xiii) Members suggested the best starting point would be to look at where the council has recruitment and retention issues for particular roles.

 Members asked if the council identified a link would it implement a definition.
- (xiv) Members suggested the council looks at the approach taken by other local authorities to consider the policies they use and explore if the use of a key worker definition was worth deploying?

In response the Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR advised through their workforce strategy the council is looking at where they have challenges with recruitment and considering what they can do to address some of the gaps discussed at the meeting.

(xv) Members referred back to ethnicity pay gap reporting and enquired if the council participated in the Government's consultation and if the council was aware they could be an early adopter? Members commented shining a spotlight on this issue could help to drive change. Members asked through the council's early work how could they make it more effective to drive the change they want to see?

The Head of HR and Organisation Development from Hackney Council confirmed the council did participate in the consultation and all London boroughs responded as a group through London council. London boroughs are all supportive of the introduction of ethnicity pay gap monitoring and want a detailed definition like the gender pay reporting. Council's would welcome this to ensure the data is comparable across local authorities. The officer confirmed the Council has not been asked to be an early adopter.

- (xvi) Members referred to the increase in hours for agency staff and noted that the view is this should be decreasing. Members enquired what Hackney Council could do more to improve this situation?
- (xvii) Members referred to the HLT report and noted their comments on not having the quantitative data on recruitment issues and asked if there is a reason why they do not collate this?
- (xviii) Members queried if this was related to the structure of education in Hackney e.g. having academies? Members acknowledged HLT was not required to collect this data, is there a way to collect this data but enquired if schools could be encouraged schools to provide this data?

In response to the first question the Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment advised for nurseries there will always be some element of agency worker because of the staff ratio required. Nurseries will not always be aware of their staffing levels on a day to day basis. However from an agency prospective, if you have a workers that is continuously booked for the last 2 years. There should be a review of that post to consider permanent recruitment. This is an indication that there is a requirement.

The Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment explained only the Children Centres are mandated to use their recruitment framework. Schools can choose to use alternative recruitment agencies. The Director suggested Hackney Council considers mandating all schools to use their recruitment services because this would be more cost efficient.

The Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust explained schools employ their own staff so they do not know all the details about the staff employed. The Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust advised the Commission schools do have a duty to return a workforce census, this informs HLT about the number of staff and how many are temporary staff. HLT could use this data to get more information and they could ask schools for more information. But this data is not currently a statutory duty for schools.

(xix) Members enquired to what extent the increasing housing costs and the decrease in volume of social housing is a key risk to the education

system in Hackney over the next 5-10 years? The education system is one key area of improvement and achievement for the council over the last few years. Members pointed out from discussions they not note that currently Hackney has teachers who are willing to travel to the borough to teach. Members asked for officer's views if this would still be the situation in the near future.

The Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust explained the system is managing at the moment. Nationally it is reported 1% - 2% of teachers are agency and the indications are this is reflected locally too. It was pointed out that it is getting harder to retain staff due to the house price surge in the last 5 years. The Director suggested they could engage with teachers to enquire if housing was available would they be encouraged to stay. This would ascertain if housing was a key factor in the retention of teacher in the borough.

Alongside the combined housing and travel costs the Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment pointed out those factors are relevant but there are other factors to consider like career development. People want a role that fulfil their career ambitions and pays well too. If they have this they are prepared to travel. Although it may not be sustainable long term.

They find that nursery workers want to work locally and Hackney pay its nursery staff a good rate above market rate. In Hackney they do not have any challenges recruiting to this role and have found the workers are often older. The workers tend to live in the local area as opposed to attracting newly qualified nursery practitioners. They usually seek to enter the private sector than a local authority.

In relation to workers moving abroad the Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment explained it was largely due to the working environment. They are often tired of the classroom management, the social aspect to the role and the increasing issues presented to them in the working environment in London. These are the other issues that entice people to seek a better work life balance and better working environment.

Although schools are rated good and outstanding; newly qualified teachers see a disparity between the day to day operations and the Ofsted ratings and think about staying for a year before moving to another borough, academy or free school.

The Executive Principal of the Primary Advantage Federation advised the risk to the future education system is future funding for schools and the lack of funding for special educational needs. This is making the teaching environment for teachers an issue. If the anticipated changes to funding materialise this is expected to have an adverse impact. This will make the environment for teachers harder. In turn will make have an even bigger impact on the retention of teaching staff in a borough like Hackney.

The Associate Director for FRCE Recruitment agreed teachers do not always think they have the support framework they need to give the level of attention required to the class. This is a contributing factor to teachers leaving the profession.

(xx) Members enquired if the volume of agency workers is an issue for the council?

The Head of HR and Organisation Development from Hackney Council confirmed the council does have high volumes of agency spend. The officer explained there are a number of reasons for this and the Audit Committee currently keeps this under review. The officer pointed out Council holds a lot of data on its agency staff such as the positions they occupy and how long they have been working for the council.

For service areas with high agency worker spend the council runs recruitment campaigns periodically to bring staff onto the permanent work force. Particularly for social work and waste services. For waste services the recruitment campaigns are run approximately every 12-18 months. This was recently successful for waste services.

Although Hackney Council does have high agency spend the borough is experiencing the same issues as other London boroughs. The officer referred Members to the jobs outlined in the report that the council has found challenging to recruit and the number of applications per post (pages 45-46 of the report).

(xxi) Members made the following enquires:

- a) How many teachers have been teaching in Hackney schools for 15 years or more?
- b) What is the ethnicity makeup of the teaching staff?
- c) In reference to IR35. How many agency workers moved to PAYE and how has this affected Hackney Council?

The Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment advised the HMRC IR35 affects agency worker or consultant employed by the Council not PAYE workers. It was highlighted that anyone earning over £10 per hour would have been better off working through their own limited company or an umbrella organisation because their take home pay could be up to 75%-80% of the gross earnings. Under PAYE this reduces to 60-65%.

The Head of HR and Organisation Development from Hackney Council informed the Commission when IR35 was introduced very few agency workers left the organisation. The number that left was very small. The officer confirmed the rates of pay for agency staff is linked to the Council's pay scales.

(xxii) Members enquired if they could confirm the numbers and look at the rate the council pays?

The Head of HR and Organisation Development from Hackney Council advised different rates of pay for agency staff would apply to jobs that are employed outside the council's pay scales.

The Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment explained when the IR35 was introduced initially the onus was on the worker to take the test on the HMRC website. This test dictated if the legislation was applicable to them and confirmed if they could operate through a limited company or not. It was found

that some individuals were not answering the questions correctly to place themselves outside the legislation. However since this discovery recruitment agencies have lobbied HMRC because the financial ouns fell to the recruitment agency if it transpired the worker was not permitted to continue operating through their limited company. Therefore if Hackney Council is employing workers who are working through their own limited company and they should not be. If HMRC took the view this worker was not permitted to operate under their own limited company, Hackney Council would have to confirm if the individual fell within or outside the legislation to have a statutory defence.

In response to the question about the number of long term teachers in Hackney schools, the Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust advised they do not have this data; explaining schools are not required to provide this information.

In response to the ethnicity makeup of the teaching staff, the officer explained they have initiatives to encourage BAME staff. HLT is aiming to have a workforce that reflect the pupil population. Schools are aware of the initiatives to encourage the number of BAME staff in schools.

The Chair commented it would be helpful to have a definitive picture of the ethnicity makeup of the teaching staff and for the council to have an understanding of the teaching staff experience (staff with 15 years or more teaching experience) within the borough's workforce.

ACTION	HLT to confirm the number
	of teaching staff who have
	worked in Hackney schools
	for 15 years or more.

- (xxiii) Members highlighted one area not mentioned in the discussion was the grouping of schools and the role of schools. This is having a big impact on the finances of schools and also on roles like teaching assistants with free schools and academy opening. Members referred to a Hackney schools group being formed for grant maintained schools and enquired how the council will make sure there will be an equal distribution in terms of finance and places?
- (xxiv) Members commented Teaching Assistant (TA) roles should be viewed as a destination and not as a departure point, but coming into the role as a career. Members pointed out many TAs are there to support pupils with education, health and care plans (EHCPs). Members enquired about the qualifications of TAs and asked how many TAs were qualified to support the pupil's they were supporting?
- (xxv) In discussions Members referred to pupils being sent out of borough to access support. Members pointed out if pupils are sent to out of borough provision for support this incurs further costs to the Council. Members suggested lobbying central government about qualifications for TAs; and locally thinking about the career development plan offer for TAs. Members were of the view this could help with recruitment, status and long term engagement.

The Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust advised the Hackney schools group Board will cover all schools - the education system in Hackney. The Chair for the Board should be confirmed at the Council's Cabinet meeting this month. One of the areas the Board plans to look at is recruitment and retention linked professional development.

The number of children in schools is a challenge for some primary schools in the borough and a number of factor contribute to this. The school population was expected to increase but this has not transpired. The unexpected turn in trend for the pupil population coincided with the UK referendum. Other factors likely to be impacting are housing benefit changes and the increase in housing costs as noted in earlier discussions. This has shifted the demographic of children in the borough. HLT cannot allocate school places equally because legislation dictates this is parental choice.

Currently the borough would challenge any proposal put forward for a new Free Schools in the borough due to the changes in pupil population numbers.

The officer pointed out where schools can fill their classes (if they have 30 and not 22) they can manage financially. They do manage down the pupil admission numbers for some schools. This helps with planning ahead for staffing.

In relation to TAs and qualifications they have a professional development offer at the Tomlinson centre or they can run this in schools. The officer agreed training could be improved and more specialist. It is has recognised there are a growing number of children with special educational needs in Hackney and they want them to have the best possible provision in Hackney schools.

In relation to the cost of out of borough provision, the officer agreed this does incur increased costs. In the future HLT aims to have more provision in borough. They will be developing a plan and strategy for this.

- (xxvi) Members pointed out through the discussions at the meeting it was clear a number of policies have impacted on recruitment and retention of staff. Members asked the meeting attendees to identify one area of policy (For example would it be the public sector pay cap, welfare benefits around housing benefit or access to social housing) they would like to see changed to enable them to recruit competent and skilled staff to the areas they currently have gaps or challenges recruiting to.
- (xxvii) In the discussions Members noted the potential detriment to the local community because of the problems recruiting and retaining skilled staff. Members asked the guests to consider what recommendations they could or should make to national Government to achieve a positive impact on economy growth and skills for the borough.

The Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment advised lifting the pay cap would enable them to offer candidates better earning potential. This may enable them to have more disposable income or buy / stay in the area.

The Primary Advantage Federation agreed with the pay cap but in addition to this raise other issues such as the work environment, children being rehoused out of borough, families in temporary accommodation and school funding.

Hackney Council highlighted that local government pay scales have fallen behind inflation over the past 10 years (measured with by RPI or CPI) in some cases quite significantly. The officer referred to page 46 in the agenda and highlighted the high number of apprenticeship applications they received from local residents because the pay is above the market average.

The Hackney Learning Trust advised the pay cap and housing – housing for length of job and relocation packages.

The Chair thanked guests Hamida Rogers – Associate Director from FRCE Recruitment and Sian Davies – Executive Principal of the Primary Advantage Federation for attending the meeting.

The Chair also thanked the Head of HR and Organisation Development and Director of Education/Head of Hackney Learning Trust from London Borough of Hackney for attending the meeting.

6 Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission 2019/20 Work Programme

- 6.1 The Chair referred to the Commission's work programme on pages 125-130 of the agenda.
- 6.2 The Chair advised the next meeting would be the Night Time Economy Summit on 16th October 2019. The commission was holding an engagement session with stakeholders about the night time economy and the vision for Hackney's night time economy.
- 6.2.1 The proposed themes for discussion were outlined to be:
 - 1. An inclusive night time economy what would an inclusive night time economy look like?
 - 2. A sustainable night time economy in Hackney is the current night time economy sustainable and what is its impact on the environment?
 - 3. Jobs How do we get good quality and sustainable jobs in the sector?

The meeting would not focus on the licensing policy but aimed to engage with stakeholders about the future of the night time economy in the borough. This engagement session aimed to give residents and businesses an opportunity to help shape the vision for Hackney's night time economy.

- 6.2.2 The Chair explained the format of the session would be like the BMAE business engagement event the Commission held in July 2018. There would be discussion groups with 4-6 people on each table.
- 6.2.3 The Chair informed the Commission he had invited Amy Lamé the Night Czar Chair to the session. The Chair was still awaiting a response.

- 6.2.4 The Chair informed there would be representation of young people voices at the session. The Chair of the Hackney Young Futures Commission (HYF) would be in attendance. The Chair informed the Commission the Hackney Young Futures Commission recently completed their consultation with young people around the borough and received 2400 responses. The data was currently being analysed and the feedback report was expected in October 2019.
- 6.2.5 In the discussions Members suggested the local pub watches in the borough were invited to the engagement session. The Chair agreed.
- 6.2.6 The Chair advised ward Councillors from wards with an active night time economy would be invited to the session.
- 6.2.7 The Chair informed the Commission the following people were listed as invitees to the meeting:
 - Relevant Ward Cllrs Dalston, Hackney Wick, Hoxton East and Shoreditch, Stoke Newington and Hoxton West
 - local businesses including Pub Watches
 - Tenant Resident Associations (resident groups)
 - Hackney Young Futures Commission.
- 6.2.8 In addition the above, the following council departments and relevant Executive Members would be invited to the session.
 - Relevant Cabinet Members
 - Area Regeneration Department
 - Planning Department
 - Licensing Department and Licensing Chair.
- 6.2.9 Members enquired about the start time for the night time economy event.

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer confirmed it would be 7pm.

- 6.2.10 In response to Members discussion about engaging a variety of local businesses at the session. The Overview and Scrutiny officer explained it was hoped that by taking the meeting out into the community and holding it in a local licensed premises; this would encourage other business owners to attend.
- 6.2.11 In the discussion Members also referred to the Future Shoreditch plan and commented this plan looked at the local area and considers what they would like to see operating in the night time economy for that area.
 - The Chair suggested they encourage Councillors from the other Wards with an active night time economy to attend the session too.
- 6.3 The Chair advised the Community Infrastructure Levy (CiL) discussion item would be added to the SEG work programme for the November meeting. Members discussed the stakeholders they wish to invite to the meeting.

6.4 For the Crossrail update Members discussed including electrify Hackney buses to the November meeting.

This was agreed.

6.5 Following the discussion under item 5 on the agenda Members were not assured the council held sufficient data that enabled them to understand the correlation and causation for the areas where they experience staff recruitment and retention challenges. Member were of the view this information would help the council to understand their key workers and then enable them to establish a local definition for key workers.

Members agreed to submit a letter of reference to the Executive about the definition of a key worker and suggest that this should include an exploration of other organisational practices in relation to recruitment strategies for key workers. Member also suggested the council establishes some kind of formal process to consider this.

ACTION	The Commission to submit a	
	letter of reference to the	
	Executive making reference to the discussion under item	
	to the discussion under item	
	5.	

- 7 Any Other Business
- 7.1 None.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00 - 9.05 pm



Skills Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission	Item No
6 th January 2020	5
Cabinet Member Question Time – Employment Skills and Human Resources)

Outline

In the municipal year the Commission holds question time sessions with the Cabinet and Senior Officers to ask questions about performance and decision-making within the Council related to their portfolio areas.

Invited guest

Councillor Carole Williams has lead responsibility for: employment strategy and partnerships, ways into work, apprenticeships, human resources and organisational development, trade unions, adult Learning, post 18 skills and equalities.

The questions submitted in advance covered:

- Apprenticeship Programme
- Post 18 Skills and Adult Learning.

Action

The Commission to hold a Q&A session with Cllr Williams about the services and decisions within her portfolio.





Skills Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission 6th January 2020 Cabinet Member Question Time – Planning, Culture and Inclusive Economy

Outline

In the municipal year the Commission holds question time sessions with the Cabinet and Senior Officers to ask questions about performance and decision-making within the Council related to their portfolio areas.

Invited guest

Councillor Guy Nicholson has lead responsibility for: planning - performance and policy, economic development, strategic infrastructure development town centres, Olympics legacy, markets, licensing policy (working with chair of licensing) and culture.

The questions submitted in advance covered:

- Community Infrastructure Levy Information paper attached
- Hackney Walk Information paper attached

Action

The Commission to hold a Q&A session with Cllr Nicholson about the services and decisions within his portfolio.



Hackney Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 Update for Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission Meeting 6th December 2019

December 2019

Background

- The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge applied to development to help pay
 for strategic infrastructure to address the cumulative impacts of development. The
 Hackney CIL charging schedule was adopted at the Full Council meeting 25 February
 2015 and came into effect on 1 April 2015 and is now charged alongside the Mayor of
 London CIL which is transferred to TfL to pay for strategic transport and currently applied
 to the Queen Elizabeth Line (Crossrail 1).
- 2. CIL charges generally apply to all development comprising one or more net residential units or more that 100 square metres of net floor space as prescribed in legislation. Hackney's CIL charge rates are set out in the table below. The charge applies to developments that have been granted planning permission since April 2015, and is only payable once those developments start construction. Affordable housing is exempt from CIL (as are other developments¹).

Type of Development and Zone	Hackney CIL (£ per sqm)
Residential – Zone A	£190
Residential – Zone B	£25
Residential – Zone C	£55
Residential – Zone D	£0
Offices – City Fringe	£50
Offices – Rest of Borough	£0
Large Format Retail ¹ — whole Borough	£150
Other Retail – City Fringe	£65
Other Retail – Rest of Borough	£0
Hotel – City Fringe	£80
Hotel – Rest of Borough	£55
Student Housing – whole Borough	£373
All Other Uses, including development of operational buildings by the emergency services	£0

3. The way CIL receipts can be spent is also prescribed legislation. Hackney CIL receipts can be spent in two key ways to support development across Hackney. The majority of receipts (80%) are spent on borough-wide infrastructure provision to mitigate the impacts of cumulative development in the borough. Expenditure of this portion of CIL is linked to the Council's capital programme and is limited to use on infrastructure to support

-

¹ https://hackney.gov.uk/hcil#what

cumulative development. It can be applied to the provision, maintenance or operation of physical infrastructure.

- 4. A smaller proportion of CIL 15% (capped at £100 per dwelling plus indexation) is known as 'Neighbourhood CIL', NCiL. This portion is required to be spent in consultation with communities or neighbourhoods and can be used more widely on any projects that support the development of the area and is not limited to infrastructure. In areas where there is a neighbourhood plan this increases to 25%. A 5% charge of CiL due is collected for setting, collecting and monitoring CIL.
- 5. Other development mitigations for new development that fall outside the definition of infrastructure for CIL purposes are secured through Section 106; this includes most employment and training measures along with other site specific requirements such securing affordable housing. Certain highways works on or adjacent to the site are also still secured through Section 106.

Update on CIL expenditure

- 6. Hackney has collected £24m in CIL since April 2015. This includes £7.4m collected in 2018/19 when a number of larger permissions began construction. As reported to the Council's Cabinet in September 2019, the Council has already applied £17.1 million of borough-wide CIL funding to projects in 2017/18 and 2018/19 through the delivery of its capital programme. This includes contributions towards new and improved infrastructure across the borough such as new facilities at Hackney Marshes, improvements to the Narrow Way in Hackney Central and a new adult day centre, development of the Britannia mixed-use development (school and leisure centre), libraries and parks infrastructure (a list of these projects is also included as Appendix 1 for ease of reference). Although not capable of paying for large infrastructure projects by itself, CIL is a crucial element of the overall funding package to enable delivery of key infrastructure as demonstrated by these projects.
- 7. The Council has accumulated just over £3.5 million of NCIL in the same time period. To date, it has not been allocated or spent as it has taken some time to build up funds following the construction of 'CIL liable' planning permissions.
- 8. Prior to CIL adoption, it was initially proposed that this NCIL would be split between 5 neighbourhood CIL areas. However, this would skew investment towards areas in the south of the borough with the highest CIL rates and receipts and away from areas such as Woodberry Down which has a zero CIL rate. As agreed by Cabinet in September 2019, a borough-wide aggregated NCIL Fund will be created with two elements:
 - a) a borough-wide element which focuses on the delivery of arts and cultural events that bring communities together including the Hackney Carnival and Discover Young Hackney.
 - b) a neighbourhood allocation for ward-level (or cross-ward) project proposals where bids for NCIL funds would be invited (including from service areas across the Council, and from voluntary, community and not for profit sectors) on a bi-annual basis for assessment and evaluation by an officer-led Area Regeneration Steering Group.
- 9. The approval process of CIL (including NCIL) and s106 contributions was reviewed in April 2019 and agreed by the CIL and s106 Corporate Board and involves recommended allocations for the use of CIL and NCIL being put forward for agreement by the Board and

Lead Members to ensure they comply with legislative restrictions on the use of CIL/NCIL before consideration for approval by Cabinet. NCIL will be facilitated by the Planning Service (with significant input and partnership working with Finance, Area Regeneration, Communications, and relevant Service Areas) using the Exacom ICT system to ensure legal compliance with the associated Planning legislation. The decision on the allocation of NCIL funds would be based on whether the proposal meets the terms of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) and,

- reflects the priorities of the Council including the Manifesto, Community Strategy, Corporate Plan, Local Plan, Cultural Strategy and Inclusive Economy Strategy and any area specific regeneration proposals/plans.
- supports and where possible mitigates the impacts of development, with a focus on people and an inclusive economy.
- is in accordance with the local communities' priorities.
- identifies and agrees any longer-term revenue implications have been identified where appropriate
- has a focus on social value, as well as offering value for money.
- includes alternative funding sources to NCIL have been sought and match funding can be secured (which can be in-kind volunteering not just monetary contribution).
- identifies delivery partners suitable to the scale and cost of the project.
- can be delivered within a set period of time and appropriate risk assessments have been undertaken.
- benefits the wider community having regard to the equalities duties under the 2010 Equalities Act.
- 10. The detailed process for bidding for NCIL and the associated timetable for allocations is being developed by officers. It is anticipated that the first round of NCIL allocations will be made in 2020.
- 11. The Council's approach to the future spend of CIL (including NCIL) and s106 will be set out in an Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement (AIFS) which is a new legislative requirement under the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 that came into force on 1st September 2019. The AIFS will replace the Regulation 123 list and will set out the infrastructure projects or types of infrastructure that will be wholly or partly funded by CIL alongside details of CIL and S106 receipts and spend. The first AIFS must be published by December 2020 to report on the financial year 19/20.

Current Approach Securing Employment and Training Measures

- 12. As highlighted in paragraph 5 above, s106 remains the main mechanism for securing contributions related to employment and training. This type of contribution falls outside of the definition of infrastructure that CIL can be applied to. All s106 requirements must meet governments tests for their use as set out in the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) namely that they must be:
 - (a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
 - (b) Directly related to the development; and
 - (c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.
- 13. The Council's current requirements are set out in the Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (2015) and updated draft 2020 and include a range of measures related to employment and training which are monitored and supported by the Council's

3

Employment and Skills Service. These s106 requirements that are sought in connection with major developments include the following measures:

- The submission Employment and Training Skills Plan to ensure that the opportunities are available to Hackney's residents including specific actions such as working with local schools, participation in job fairs and recruitment events; and promotion of careers in construction and in the operational use phase of the development.
- A minimum target of 30% of the workforce as Local Labour during the construction and demolition phase and during the first 5 years of operation from the first occupation of the development.
- Agreement to engage with local suppliers directly and to supply the Council's Economic Development team with a full **Procurement Plan** identifying the services and materials that will be sourced for the lifetime of the project and the location of the suppliers they have been sourced from.
- 14. The Council also secures financial contributions to support training, employment and local procurement during construction phase and occupation which is applied to projects delivered by the Council's Employment and Skills Service. This sum is calculated in line with the supplementary planning guidance linked to the scale of development and the likely number of employees. Since April 2015 the Council has **received £5,515,000** in funding:

Financial Year	Employment and Training Funding Received
2015/16	63,650
2016/17	1,200,000
2017/18	2,489,000
2018/19	1,762,270

Note: Some of this funding, in particular receipts 2015/16 will relate to permissions granted prior to 2015

- 15. In addition, for very large development with construction contracts of £2m of more, there is also a requirement for the employment of least one full framework apprentice for every £2m of contract value. The apprenticeship(s) are aimed at residents in Hackney in the various building trades (such as brick laying, carpentry, electrical, plumbing and plastering and new method of constriction). If site/ development limitations mean this cannot be achieved a payment in lieu of this provision of £7,000 per apprentice is negotiated.
- 16. Linked to this agenda and to address the increasing level of unaffordable workspace for businesses in the borough, the Council also introduced an Affordable Workspace policy in the Council's Development Management Local Plan. Since 2013, the planning service has secured 8,603.5 sqm of affordable workspace through S106 agreements to 2017/18.

Future Approaches Securing Employment and Training Measures

17. The Council is soon to adopt its new borough-wide local plan 2033, known as LP33, which will be the key strategic planning document used to direct and guide development in the borough up to 2033. Linked to this, officers are will be updating the Council's existing Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (2015) to align it with the new

- policies. It is anticipated that this will be consulted on early in 2020 in order to be adopted alongside the new local plan.
- 18. Section 106 will continue to be the main mechanism for securing employment and training measures related to development. It is intended that approaches summarised above and currently included the 2015 guidance are rolled forward in any replacement guidance. The policy requirements related to providing affordable workspace established in the Council's Development Management Local Plan 2013 are retained and extended in the new Local Plan LP33.

Appendix 1: Hackney CIL Expenditure

Ref	Name/Descri ption	Status	Project Type	Service	Financ e Year	Ward	CIL Spend Total
513	Hackney CIL - Oswald Street Day Centre	Complet ed	HCIL12 3 H and S Care	Health and Communit y Services	2017	Kings Park (M)	195,000.00
518	Hackney CIL - Primary School Programme - Woodberry Down	Complet ed	HCIL12 3 Educati on	The Learning Trust	2017	Woodber ry Down Ward	307,293.00
519	Hackney CIL - Narrow Way Improvements	Complet ed	HCIL12 3 Strat Transpo rt	Streetsce ne	2017	Hackney Central Ward	1,045,296. 00
520	Hackney CIL - Highways Planned Maintenance	Complet ed	HCIL12 3 Strat Transpo rt	Streetsce ne	2017		3,745,701. 09
521	Hackney CIL - Hackney Marshes Improvements	Complet ed	HCIL12 3 Open Space	Parks Team	2017	Hackney Wick Ward	3,237,805. 20
522	Hackney CIL - Hackney Wick Station	Complet ed	HCIL12 3 Strat Transpo rt	TfL	2017	Hackney Wick Ward	508,006.71

CIL Drawdown 17/18	
Project	£
Woodberry Down Primary School	307,293
Oswald Street Day Centre	195,000
Hackney Marshes	3,237,805
Highways Planned Maintenance	3,745,701
Hackney Central Council funded	1,045,296
Hackney Wick Regeneration	508,007
	9,039,102

CIL Drawdown 18/19	
Project	£
Haggerston Science Lab	370,197
Britannia Site	6,100,000
Library Management System	66,604
Library Capital Works	125,111
Library Self-Issue Machines	20,854
Mabley Green All Weather Pitch	124,484
Abney Park	240,193
Parks Strategy - Infrastruct	832,410
Park Trees H&S Works	176,412
Hoxton Market	12,191
Hackney Street Markets Strat	31,544
	8,100,000

Ends.



Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission- 6th January 2020

Hackney Walk

1. Background

The railway arches in Morning Lane are owned by the Arch Co (previously Network Rail). Network Rail first approached the Council in 2006 with plans to refurbish the railway arches in Morning Lane however this did not progress at the time.

Following the 2011 riots, the Greater London Authority launched the Mayor's Regeneration Fund, which was designed to provide grants to deliver physical, social and economic regeneration. Hackney Council, with the written support of local businesses, faith groups, and public sector partners, submitted a bid to the fund in December 2011, for grant funding to support projects to:

- Pedestrianise the Narrow Way
- Build a walkway between Hackney Downs and Hackney Central station
- Refurbish and fit out Network Rail's railway arches
- Improve public spaces on Morning Lane
- Refurbish shop fronts on the Narrow Way, Mare Street and Clarence Road for businesses whose premises were damaged during the riots
- Install new facilities at Ridley Road Market.

The Council was awarded £5.3m from the GLA fund in January 2012 and £1.5m of this was allocated to the railway arches and public spaces on Morning Lane. In 2015, Hackney Walk opened with 10 of the 12 refurbished railway arches occupied alongside one of the infill buildings.

At the time the site was being developed, Hackney Walk Limited took a lease from Network Rail for the railway arches. The two buildings currently occupied by Nike and the unit opposite were owned by Hackney Walk Limited. Since then the ownership of Hackney Walk has now transferred to a different company with Network Rail (now the Arch Co) remaining the freeholder. The Council is in contact with the new owner to encourage them to develop an alternative plan for the site which would see the vacant units occupied.

2. What are the Council's plans for Hackney Walk

As the Council doesn't own the land at Hackney Walk our role is to continue to engage and encourage the owners of the site to progress with a scheme to diversify the uses on the site and ensure that the vacant units are occupied as soon as possible with a mix of uses that better serves the local community and adds to the town centre offer in Hackney Central. Area Regeneration are leading on these discussions with the site owner.

3. How does this fit in with the other regeneration plans in Hackney Central

If the intention of the site owner is to diversity the uses on the site then, subject to securing planning permission, the Council would support this and ensure the mix of uses provided at Hackney Walk adds to and supports the other uses and plans underway in the town centre as well as delivering wider social and economic benefits for local residents and businesses.





Skills Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission 6th January 2020 Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission Work Programme for 2019/20

Outline

Attached is the work programme for the Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission for 2019/20. This is a working document that is regularly updated.

Action

The Commission is asked for any comments, amendments or suggestions for the work programme.



Overview & Scrutiny

Skills, Economy and Growth Scrutiny Commission Rolling Work Programme June 2019 – April 2020

All meetings take pace at 7.00 pm in Hackney Town Hall unless stated otherwise on the agenda. This rolling work programme report is updated and published on the agenda for each meeting of the Commission.

Dates	Proposed Item	Directorate and officer contact	Description, Comment and Action
Mon 17 th June 2019 Papers deadline: Wed 5 th June	Work Programme Discussion	Chief Executive Directorate Overview and Scrutiny - Tracey Anderson	To agree a review topic and discussion items for the work programme.
	Update on Inclusive Economy Strategy	Chief Executive Directorate Director - Stephen Haynes	update on the development of the Council's Inclusive Economy Strategy, proposed timescales for implementation
Mon 8 July 2019 Papers deadline: Thurs 27 th June	Inclusive Economy Strategy Consultation Workshop	Chief Executive Directorate Head of Policy and Partnerships - Sonia Khan	Review of the strategy out for consultation and the development of metrics. Presentation from HM Cabinet Office on Inclusive Economy Partnership
Mon 16 Sept 2019 Papers deadline: Wed 4th Sept	Cost of living and public sector recruitment strategies	Various	Recognising how the growing disparity between cost of living and public sector salaries are going to pose a real tension for recruitment strategies and talent management. Looking at the cost of living and the ability to fill key public sector roles.

Dates	Proposed Item	Directorate and officer contact	Description, Comment and Action	
Wed 16 Oct 2019	Night Time Economy Seminar	Chief Executive Directorate Overview and Scrutiny	Review of new policy, jobs, sustainability of sector, implications for residents and growth.	
Papers deadline: Fri 4 th Oct		Tracey Anderson		
	Hackney Young Futures	Chief Executive Directorate	Update on Young People's Consultation	
	Commission	Project Lead, Young Futures Commission Rohney Saggar-Malik	Feedback of young people's views on employment, opportunities and the economy.	
Mon 21 Nov 2019	Crossrail 2 Update from Transport for London	Transport For London – Crossrail 2	Update on the progress of Crossrail 2 In response to the government's call to make	
Papers deadline: Mon 11 th Nov			Crossrail 2 more affordable, TfL are reviewing the scheme, design and delivery in order to ensure best value for money. TfL is currently awaiting a decision from the Government about next steps for the scheme. Update to Commission about the progress of Crossrail2 will be provided at a later date.	
Mon 6 Jan 2020	Cabinet Member Question Time sessions –	Mayor's Office – Head of Mayors Office and Support	The questions submitted in advance covered: • Apprenticeship Programme	
Papers deadline: Wed 18st Dec		Officer Cllr Williams	Post 18 Skills and Adult Learning	
	Cabinet Member Question Time sessions	Mayor's Office – Head of Mayors Office and Support Officer Cllr Nicholson	The questions submitted in advance covered: Community Infrastructure Levy Hackney Walk	
	Making the Local Economy Work for Hackney - Recommendation	Chief Executive Directorate Overview and Scrutiny		

Dates	Proposed Item	Directorate and officer contact	Description, Comment and Action
	Discussion	Tracey Anderson	
Tues 25 th Feb 2020 Papers deadline: Thurs 13 th Feb	Introducing Just Transition	Various contributors	An introduction to the topic Just Transition for the Commission in advance of starting their scrutiny review.
Wed 25 th Mar 2020 Papers deadline: Fri 13 th Mar	Work Programme 2018/19 and Work Programme Planning for 2019/20	Chief Executive Directorate Overview and Scrutiny Tracey Anderson	

This page is intentionally left blank